

# Manual DALI-2 Presence Detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL UP



2022-02-25\_307483

# Contents

1	General	3
	1.1 Safety information	3
	1.2 Proper Use	3
	1.3 Explanation of terms	3
2		د ب
2		4
3	Technical data	5
4	Product characteristics	6
	4.1 Usage	6
	4.2 Functionality	6
	4.3 Dimensions	8
	4.4 Detection area	9
	4.5 WHERESS RECEIVER / HARSHILLER BLE	10
	4.0 Initiated receiver 4.7 Display/visualisation	10
F		10
5 C		15
6	Installation	14
	6.1 Flush-mounted installation	14
	6.2 Centry installation 6.3 Surface-mounted installation	14
	6.4 Installation of area restriction	15
7	Start-up with "DALL-2 RS Plug" app	16
/	7.1 Ann hasic settings	16
	7.2 Create project	21
	7.3 Setting parameters of groups and scenes	26
	7.4 Setting master parameters	46
	7.5 Setting presence sensor parameters	53
	7.6 Setting parameters of DALI participants	56
	7.7 Start-up	62
	7.8 User remote control	67
8	Appendix	69
	8.1 Short circuit mechanism	69
	8.2 Operating systems	69
9	Accessories	70
10	Contact	72

## 1 General

### 1.1 Safety information

CAUTION Installation and connection should only be carried out by a qualified electrician!

### 1.2 Proper Use

The presence detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL is intended for indoor installation. The presence detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL is exclusively intended for use as contractually agreed between the manufacturer and the user. Any other use is considered to be unacceptable. The manufacturer does not accept liability for any resulting damages.

## 1.3 Explanation of terms

There is a difference between motion detectors and presence detectors. Motion detectors can only detect large movements. Presence detectors, on the other hand, can detect even the smallest of movements – those made while seated, for example. The theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL detects both large and small movements and is therefore called a presence detector.

HCL	Human Centric Lighting				
RGB	RGB colour model – RGB stands for red, green, blue				
RGBW	RGB colour model with adjustable white component				
TW	Tunable white function				
DALI	Digital Addressable Lighting Interface				
EB	Electronic ballast				
Master	Presence detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL UP				
Presence detector	theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL UP				
AP	Surface-mounted				
DE	Ceiling installation				
UP	Flush-mounted				
Control	Constant lighting control				
Switching	Switching operation				

### 1.4 Definitions



## 2 Function description

The DALI-2 Room Solution from Theben is a DALI-2 single room solution handling all aspects of lighting control. For the single room solution, all key components such as presence detector, switch actuator, push button interface as well as the app for start-up are available from Theben. Unlike standard DALI presence detectors, the DALI-2 Room Solution offers new functionalities such as HCL function, TW/RGB functionality, time-controlled functions, etc.

The presence detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL is the heart of the DALI-2 Room Solution. It evaluates the information from the DALI-2 push button interfaces and controls the actuators, such as DALI-2 EBs or DALI-2 relays. Various DALI-2 presence sensors are available for extending the detection area.





The presence detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL and other DALI components are connected to the DALI line. The DALI supply is provided by the master.

A user-friendly "DALI-2 RS Plug" app is available for start-up and configuration. This free app allows you to intuitively start up a DALI-2 single-room solution without any knowledge of DALI-2.



# 3 Technical data

Operating voltage	230 V AC, +10%/-15%, 50 Hz			
Power consumption without DALI participant	< 0.7 W			
Power consumption with DALI participants	< 1.6 W (with DALI output 150 mA)			
DALI output	guaranteed 150 mA, max. 250 mA (EN 62386- 101)			
Connection type	Screw terminals			
Cable cross-section	max. 2 x 2.5 mm <sup>2</sup>			
Type of installation <sup>1</sup>	Flush-mounted			
Size of flush-mounted housing	Size 1			
Recommended installation height	2 – 10 m / max. 15 m			
Minimum height	> 1.7 m			
Detection area, horizontal	360°			
Detection area, walking <sup>2</sup>	Ø 24.0 m   452 m²			
Detection area, seated <sup>3</sup>	Ø 6.0 m   28 m²			
Time accuracy of time switch	≤ ±0.5 s/day at +25 °C			
Power reserve of time switch	at least 7 years			
Radio frequency/transmission power BLE	2.4 GHz/Class 2 (2.5 mW)			
Protection rating	IP 20 (IP 54 when installed)			
Ambient temperature	-15 °C to +45 °C			
CE Declaration of Conformity	This device corresponds to EN 60669-2-5.			
RCM conformity	This device is compliant with the ACMA guidelines.			
DALI conformity	IEC 62386-101/103			
Supported devices	208 (DT7)/209 (DT8)/218			
Supported control units	301/303			

<sup>1</sup> surface-mounted installation and ceiling installation using springs also possible with accessories

 $^{\rm 2}$  transverse movement with an installation height of 3 m

 $^{\rm 3}$  seated with an installation height of 3 m

# 4 Product characteristics

### 4.1 Usage

The focus is on purpose-built facilities, within the following applications in particular:

- Offices
- Large offices
- School rooms
- Conference rooms
- Entrance halls
- Hospitals, retirement homes
- Restaurants, bars
- Warehouses and sports halls

### 4.2 Functionality

- Up to 4 lighting channels, DALI addressable
- Easy, intuitive configuration of DALI groups via DALI-2 RS Plug app (for tablets iOS/Android and for laptops with BLE Windows 10)
- Integration of up to 16 DALI push button instances via app
- Integration of up to 4 DALI relays via app
- Colour temperature control based on time of day HCL
- Operation with RGB and RGBW LEDs
- Time-controlled actions thanks to the integrated time switch
- Switching mode or constant lighting control with standby function
- Switching mode with dimmable lighting
- Switching mode and constant lighting control without influence of presence
- Dimming speed of manual dimming adjustable in 2 steps
- Selection of dimming curve (normal or linear dimming curve according to IEC 62386-218)
- Fully or semi-automatic
- Brightness switching or setpoint value adjustable in lux
- Teach-in of the brightness switching value or the setpoint value
- Setting of room correction factor (brightness measurement calibration)
- Lighting time delay configurable
- Adaptable 3-channel light measurement

- Easy to calibrate brightness measurement
- Short-term presence
- Self-learning time delay
- Simple configuration of the energy-saving behaviour (eco/eco plus)
- Selectable control speed
- Manual override via remote control or push button
- Staircase light function
- Response to push button operation selectable (school/office)
- Test mode for checking function and detection area
- Test mode light
- Configurable with app remote control direct communication via BLE and thus easy reading of all parameters
- Scenes can be lighting group-, switching group-, relay- or EB-oriented and can be called up via push button or user remote control
- Configurable detection sensitivity
- Restriction of detection area
- Integration of several DALI-2 presence sensors for extending the detection area
- Automatic detection and integration of presence sensors (up to 5 devices)
- Simple and cost-effective installation of all components on one DALI line
- The user remote controls theSenda S or theSenda B can be used to dim or switch the lamps when calling up the scenes
- Nice design with exchangeable bezel frames in two colours
- Ceiling installation in flush-mounting box
- Surface-mounted installation possible with surface frame 110A (optional)
- theSenda S user remote control (optional)
- User remote control theSenda B (optional)

All of the product characteristics are described in detail in the following sections.



- 4.3 Dimensions
- 4.3.1 Flush-mounted installation





### 4.3.2 Surface-mounted installation and ceiling installation with springs



with ceiling flush-mounting box 68A

with surface frame 110A



### 4.4 Detection area

The circular detection area of presence detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL UP covers a large area and permits a **complete** room coverage with many applications.

m D Note that seated and walking persons are detected in differently sized areas.

The recommended installation height is 2 - 10 m. As installation height increases, the sensitivity of theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL decreases. At an installation height of 4 m or higher, walking motions are necessary and the detection areas of several theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL should overlap in the marginal zones. The detection range is reduced as the temperature increases, and the sensitivity can be adjusted in 5 increments via theSenda B/app remote control.

#### Seated persons

theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL responds very sensitively to slightest movements. The specifications refer to slightest movements (at table height, approx. 0.8 m).

#### Walking persons

From an installation height of > 4 m, the size of and distance between the active and passive zones increase. More pronounced movements are required for clear detection.

Installatio n height (A)	Transverse (	(t)	Head on to (	(r)	Seated (s)	
2.0 m	380 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 22 m	28 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø6m	16 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 4.5 m
2.5 m	415 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 23 m	38 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø7m	24 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 5.5 m
3.0 m	452 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 24 m	50 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 8 m	28 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 6.0 m
3.5 m	452 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 24 m	50 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 8 m	38 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 7.0 m
4.0 m	452 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 24 m	50 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø8m	-	-
5.0 m	452 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 24 m	50 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø8m	-	-
6.0 m	452 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 24 m	50 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 8 m	-	-
10.0 m	491 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 25 m	50 m <sup>2</sup>	Ø 8 m	_	_

All figures are guidance values (Detection areas according to sensNORM, see data sheet)





#### 4.4.1 Area restriction

The detection area is limited by an attachable cover clip with several pre-punched segments (9070921), which are broken out by the installer to achieve the desired detection characteristic.

### 4.5 Wireless receiver/transmitter BLE

This wireless interface allows bidirectional communication between tablet or laptop running Windows 10 and presence detector via Bluetooth. In this way, all parameters can be read out easily and start-up is simple. Firmware updates of the master are possible via the app using Bluetooth.

### 4.6 Infrared receiver

An infrared receiver can be used to receive control commands. This process involves unidirectional communication. theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL can be operated with the following remote controls:

- theSenda B user remote control (9070985)
- theSenda S user remote control (9070911)
- theSenda P installation remote control (9070910) (limited functional support, see Chapter 7.8 User remote control)

### 4.7 Display/visualisation

The statuses of theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL are indicated via an RGB LED in different colours. The RGB LED is located under the lens. The following states are possible:



Display during firmware update of the master.



LED flickers (12.5 Hz) when a valid remote control command is received.



Rejection pulse when an invalid remote control command is received.



Error flashing (applies until the error has been resolved).



Flashing pattern for identifying the master.



The master checks all DALI devices connected to the DALI bus.



DALI devices have not yet been assigned to a group. The flashing stops when all DALI operating devices have been assigned to a group.



Change in the system structure; new or missing DALI participants were discovered.

9. DALI group assignment:



Master is in the Assign DALI Device mode.



No DALI device is connected to the master, or a DALI line is interrupted.

#### 11. Presence test:

RGB LED lights up in green when motion is detected, otherwise it is off; it is valid until the presence test is terminated.



After triggering the restart, the master goes through the start-up phase. This is indicated with this flashing pattern.

#### 13. Indication of motion:

RGB LED lights up in green when motion is detected, otherwise it is off; it is valid until the indication of motion is terminated.



# 5 Connection

The presence detector theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL (master) is connected to the mains voltage and the DALI line. Depending on the application, the required DALI participants such as DALI-2 presence sensors, DALI-2 push button interfaces and DALI operating devices are connected to the DALI line.

A maximum of 1 DALI-2 master, 5 DALI-2 presence sensors, 16 DALI-2 push button instances and 4 DALI-2 relays can be connected to the DALI bus.
 Altogether, a maximum of 64 DALI devices (EBs and relays) can be connected.
 The master provides the power supply for all bus-powered DALI participants.
 Only one power supply is allowed! Do not connect any external power supplies to the DALI bus.
 The current consumption of all DALI participants must not exceed 150 mA.
 Short circuit mechanism according to IEC 62386-101, see Chapter <u>8.1 Short circuit mechanism</u>.



DALI participants, see Chapter 9. Accessories.



# 6 Installation

### 6.1 Flush-mounted installation

The theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL is flush-mounted using a size 1 standard flush-mounting installation socket.



## 6.2 Ceiling installation

For easier installation of theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL in false ceilings with thicknesses between 0.5 mm and 3 cm, a ceiling flush-mounting box 68A is available (see accessories). This also ensures cord grip and contact protection. The installation diameter is 72 mm (drill diameter 73 mm).





### 6.3 Surface-mounted installation

A surface frame 110A is available for surface mounted installation (see accessories).



### 6.4 Installation of area restriction

The cover clip accessory can be used to individually restrict the detection area.

- Cut clips as required (d1)
- Insert area restriction in cover ring (d2)
- Install on detector (d3)



# 7 Start-up with "DALI-2 RS Plug" app

All settings and start-up are carried out via BLE using the "DALI-2 RS Plug" app. The app is intuitively structured and supports the following basic functions:

- Creating and saving a project with several rooms or DALI-2 Room Solution
- Planning and configuration of the DALI-2 Room Solution, with and without connection to the Master
- Importing the system and assigning the devices
- Exchange of devices
- Creating time programs
- Setting options for Human Centric Lighting (HCL), RGBW
- Diagnosis and setting functions for the master

### 7.1 App basic settings

#### 7.1.1 Android, iOS

$\leftarrow$		Test			* ) * 94%
_ <u>~</u> [ <u>@</u> ] \_́	Ground floor	+	Ď	Ĩ	
Rooms	Master Gym 1 Gym 1				

The 3 dots on the right side take you to "Settings" and "Software Info".





The following settings can be made:

#### Settings...

The desired language can be selected in the settings.

	≸ الا 🕯 🔋 94% 🛑 11:3	3
<del>~</del>		
Language	English 🗸	

#### Language

The following languages are supported:

- German
- English
- French
- Italian
- Dutch
- Swedish

When **Settings...** is opened in the "Rooms" window, the settings for daylight saving time changeover also appear.

$\leftarrow$	Settings
Language	English 🗸
Summer and winter time	
	Central Europe 🗸 🗸
Season	Summer time 🗸
Week	Last 🗸
Month	March 🗸
Hour	2 h > 3 h 🗸
Week day	Sunday 🗸

**Example**: Daylight saving time automatically changes from 02:00 to 03:00 a.m. on Sunday in the last week of March.



The selections are:

- No SU/WI: There is no automatic daylight saving time changeover
- Central Europe: template for Central Europe
- Western Europe: template for Western Europe
- Eastern Europe: template for Eastern Europe

Customised settings are also possible.

#### Software info



#### Import project

Archived projects can be easily imported by tapping the \*.dlp file in the e-mail and then selecting the DALI-2 RS Plug app in the pop-up window.

We recommend using Microsoft Outlook for the import, as not all e-mail services create the link to the DALI-2 RS Plug app.

Exporting projects, see Chapter 7.2 Create project.

#### 7.1.2 Windows 10





The following settings can be made:

#### Import project

Archived projects can be easily imported. The projects are of type \*.dlp. Exporting projects, see Chapter <u>7.2 Create project</u>.

Opper project file	Opeper project file     Vere FOR Detumente > DAU-2 Room Solution Projekt     Opeper project file     Vere FORMER > DAU-2 Room Solution Projekt     Vere FOR	Compariser the     Comparis	Comproject file     Company project file     Company Sector Product Product Project     Company Sector Product Project     Company Sector Product Project     Company Sector Proje	Open project file     Open project file     Open project file     Open project file     Open fi	aliplug					
+ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	• • • • • • • • • • • Dieser RC > Dokumente > DALI-2 Room Solution Projekt       • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	← → ★ ↑ → Deser PC > Dolumente > DALI-2 Room Solution Projekt       ✓ Ø       P DALI-2 Room Solution Projekt         Organisatera • Near Ordser       ● < ● ●        ● <th><ul> <li></li></ul></th> <th><ul> <li>Open project file</li> </ul></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>×</th>	<ul> <li></li></ul>	<ul> <li>Open project file</li> </ul>					×
Organisieren     Neuer Ordner       Organisieren     Name       Orde/bive - Theben HTS AG     Image: Status       Orde/bive - Theben HTS AG     Office Building London Square.dlp       O deuborde     0       2 Ostuport     1       0 Ostuport     1       0 Ostuport     1       0 Ostuport     1       0 Ostuport     0       0 Ostuport     1       0 Ostuport     0	Organisieren     Neuer Ordner     E + III       Ordebrike - Theben HTS AG     IIII     Name       Ordebrike - Theben HTS AG     IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	Organiseren * Neuer Ordner       E * I         Ordechrie - Traben HTS AG       Name         Bilder       Ordechrie - Traben HTS AG         Debarnente       Ordechrie - Subject         Dobumente       Occuration	Organisierer • Neuer Ordner     Image: Status     Accenargoantum     Typ     Gro       Ordnöhre - Theber H15 AG     Image: Status     Accenargoantum     Typ     Gro       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Accenargoantum     Typ     Gro       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Tracter: OALiplu.     Tracter: OALiplu.       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Tracter: OALiplu.     Tracter: OALiplu.       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Tracter: OALiplu.     OALiplu.       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Status     Tracter: OALiplu.       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Image: Status     Tracter: OALiplu.       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Image: Status     Tracter: OALiplu.       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Image: Status     Image: Status       Image: Destatop     Image: Status     Image: Status     Image:	Organizieren       Neuer Ordner         Organizieren       Neuer Ordner         Ordolfies - Theben HTS AG       Image: Status         Andernogszähum       Typ         Bioder       Status         Andernogszähum       Typ         Bioderseite       Status         Status       Neuer Orderseite         Status       Status	← → × ↑ 🖡 > Dieser PC > Dokumente	> DALI-2 Room Solution Projekt		v U 2	"DALI-2 Room Solution Pro	oj
OneDrive - Theben HTS AG       Name       Status       Andenungsdaum       Typ       Gro         Wilder       Ortice Building Loodon Square dip       O       20.2022 11:8       Theben - DAUplue.         Destinante       Ortice Building Loodon Square dip       O       10.02.2022 11:8       Theben - DAUplue.         Dotamente       Ortice Building Loodon Square dip       O       10.02.2022 01:32       Theben - DAUplue.         In owne       Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.022 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.022 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.022 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.02.202 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.02.202 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.02.202 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.02.202 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Software Made       Software Made       O       0.02.02.202 07:32       Theben - DAUplue.         Destinante       Software	OreChrie - Theben HTS AG     Name     Status     Addenungsdatum     Typ     Gro       Detaitop     Intelen - OALiplu.       Detaitop     180.22222 1138     Theben - OALiplu.       Intelen AG     0.00000000000000000000000000000000000	Orechtwe - Theben HTS AG       Name       Status       Anderungustatum       Type       Gro         Decktop       23.02.202.2113       Theben - OAllplu.         Dockmente       0       100.2202.059       Theben - OAllplu.         Dockmente       0       0.02.202.0132       Theben - OAllplu.         Dockmente	Orechrive - Theten HIS AG       Name       Status       Anderungsdatum       Typ       Gro         Bilder       Destapp       100 (Status)       100 (Status)       Theten - OAllpha.         Dobumente       100 (Status)       100 (Status)       Theten - OAllpha.         Dobumente       0 (Status)       0 (Status)       Theten - OAllpha.         Datemane       0 (Status)       0 (Status)       Theten - OAllpha.         Dobumente       0 (Status)       0 (Status)       0 (Status)         Datemane       0 (Status)       0 (Status)       0 (Status)         Datemane       0 (	Orachive - Theben HTS AG       Name       Status       Anderungustatum       Type       Gro         Disktop       230220221133       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Dobumente       1002202059       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Nome       020220220732       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Team BU D&L - Ceneral       020220220732       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Disktop       020220220732       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Team BU D&L - Ceneral       020220220732       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Disktop       0200200220732       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Disktop       0200200220732       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Disktop       0200200220732       Theben - OAL(pluz.         Disktop       0700000000000000000000000000000000000	Organisieren • Neuer Ordner				ji • 🔲	0
I Bidar       Office Sulving London Sagara dip       O       2202.2022 11:8       Thebro - NAUbu         ID betop       Integration of the Sulving London Sagara dip       O       1802.2022 11:8       Thebro - NAUbu         ID obumente       Integration of the Sulving London Sagara dip       O       1802.2022 11:8       Thebro - NAUbu         ID obumente       Integration of the Sulving London Sagara dip       O       1002.2022 08:90       Thebro - OAUbu         ID obumente       Schulhaus Luem.dip       O       0.202.202 07:32       Thebro - OAUbu         ID theben AG       Schulhaus Luem.dip       O       0.202.202 07:32       Thebro - OAUbu         ID theben AG       Schulhaus Luem.dip       O       0.202.202 07:32       Thebro - OAUbu         ID theben AG       Schulhaus Luem.dip       O       0.202.202 07:32       Thebro - OAUbu         ID theben AG       Schulhaus Luem.dip       O       0.202.202 07:32       Thebro - OAUbu         ID theben FC       Schulhaus Luem.dip       V       V       V       V         ID bok- General       Schulhaus Luem.dip       V       V       V       V         ID bok- General       Schulhaus Luem.dip       V       V       V       V         ID bok- General       V <th>Biber Biber Biber Biber Columente Broken Broken Biber Columente Broken Broken Biber Columente Broken Studiase Lizem.dip Qual 2022 01:33 Theter - DALiplu. Broken Broken Biber Columente Broken Studiase Lizem.dip Qual 2022 01:32 Theter - DALiplu. Broken Biber Columente Broken Studiase Lizem.dip Qual 2022 01:32 Theter - DALiplu. Broken Biber Columente Broken Columente Delename Columente Delename Delename Columente Delename Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Delename</th> <th>Bider     Detkop     Detkop     Dotko     Dotkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Dotkop     Dotko</th> <th>Bilder Detatop Office Public product grant and point of Square all p</th> <th>Bilder       Office Building London Square ally       0       210,2202,21138       Theber - OALplub, L.         Detailop       0       100,2202,0859       Theber - OALplub, L.         Domenter       0       100,2202,0859       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       02,202,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       02,202,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       02,02,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       0,02,02,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Distance       0       0,02,02,02,07,07,02       Theber - OALplub, L.         Distance       0       0,02,02,020,07,07       Distance         Distance       0       0,01,02,05,000       Distance         Distance       0       0,01,02,05,000       Distance         Distance       0       0,01,02,05,000       Distance<th><ul> <li>OneDrive - Theben HTS AG</li> </ul></th><th>^ Name</th><th>Status</th><th>Änderungsdatum</th><th>Тур</th><th>Gröl</th></th>	Biber Biber Biber Biber Columente Broken Broken Biber Columente Broken Broken Biber Columente Broken Studiase Lizem.dip Qual 2022 01:33 Theter - DALiplu. Broken Broken Biber Columente Broken Studiase Lizem.dip Qual 2022 01:32 Theter - DALiplu. Broken Biber Columente Broken Studiase Lizem.dip Qual 2022 01:32 Theter - DALiplu. Broken Biber Columente Broken Columente Delename Columente Delename Delename Columente Delename Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename Columente Delename	Bider     Detkop     Detkop     Dotko     Dotkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Detkop     Dotkomente     Dotkop     Dotko	Bilder Detatop Office Public product grant and point of Square all p	Bilder       Office Building London Square ally       0       210,2202,21138       Theber - OALplub, L.         Detailop       0       100,2202,0859       Theber - OALplub, L.         Domenter       0       100,2202,0859       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       02,202,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       02,202,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       02,02,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Theber AG       0       0,02,02,202,07,32       Theber - OALplub, L.         Distance       0       0,02,02,02,07,07,02       Theber - OALplub, L.         Distance       0       0,02,02,020,07,07       Distance         Distance       0       0,01,02,05,000       Distance         Distance       0       0,01,02,05,000       Distance         Distance       0       0,01,02,05,000       Distance <th><ul> <li>OneDrive - Theben HTS AG</li> </ul></th> <th>^ Name</th> <th>Status</th> <th>Änderungsdatum</th> <th>Тур</th> <th>Gröl</th>	<ul> <li>OneDrive - Theben HTS AG</li> </ul>	^ Name	Status	Änderungsdatum	Тур	Gröl
Teben AG     Zo19950 2:Koni-Meider - General     Zo19950 2:Koni-Meider - General     Dieser PC     Do-Objede     Dieser PC     Dotoide     Destop     Dotoinete     Destop     Dotoinete     Dateiname     V     DAL-2 RS Plug file (*dp)     V     Office     Abbrechen     d		Editional Medio - General     Editional Dubli - General     Description	Doter RC     Deter RC	Tomebade     Deterance	Elider Desktop Dokumente home	Office Building London Square.dlp     Bürogebäude Zürich.dlp     Krankenhaus Basel.dlp     Schulhaus Luzern.dlp	0 0 0	23.02.2022 11:18 18.02.2022 11:23 10.02.2022 08:59 02.02.2022 07:32	Theben - DALIplu Theben - DALIplu Theben - DALIplu Theben - DALIplu	
Dister RC     Solution     Desting	Dieter PC     Sologies     Baer     Dedeixop     Deteiname     Deteiname     Deteiname     Other     Abbechen	Select PC Select PC Select PC Destrop	Solicer KC 30-Objekte Bilder Dekktop Dekktop Dektomente Dektomente Dektomente Offmen Abbrechen	Select RC Select RC Destrop D	<ul> <li>Theben AG</li> <li>2019050 2-Kanal-Melder - General</li> <li>Team BU D&amp;L - General</li> </ul>					
	Destrop     Detername     Detername     Detername     Offree     Abbrechen			Dektop     Dokumente     Dateiname     Dateiname     Officen     Abbrechen	.≫ Dieser PC ③ 3D-Objekte 屬 Bilder					
Counterent     V     C     Dateiname:     V     Dateiname:     V     Offnen     Abbrechen     d	Countering     Constraints     Constraint	Contracting     Constraints     Constrain	Determente Determente Determente Determente Determente OBLI-2 RS Plug file (* dip) ~ Offree Abbrechten d	Dateiname V C DAL-2 R5 Plug Tie ("dip) V DAL-2 R5 Plug Tie ("dip) V Officen Abbrechen J	Desktop					- 1
Dateiname: VDALI-2 RS Plug file (*dip) V Offnen Abbrechen	Datename V DALI-2 RS Plug file (*dlp) V Offnen Abbrechen	Datename: VDALI-2 RS Plug file (*dp) V Offnen Abbrechen	Datename: VDALI-2 RS Plug file (*dlp) V Offnen Abbrechen	Dateiname: Dati-2 RS Plug file (*dip) v Offnen Abbrechen	Downloads	~ <				>
					Dateiname:			V DAU-	2 RS Plug file (*.dlp) Mfnen Abbrechen	× 1

> Select the desired file on the PC and copy it to the app by using Open.

#### Settings...

The desired language can be selected in the settings.

File Dele					
ne nep	thet	oon dali-2 RS Piu	)		
	+	/ [	) 🖂		
Office Building London Square	🖲 daliplug		×	) >	
	Language	English	>	dalplug     X Language     English     V Dautsch     English     Français     Halano     Nederlands     Svenska	

#### Language

The following languages are supported:

- German
- English
- French
- Italian
- Dutch
- Swedish

When **Settings...** is opened in the "Rooms" window, the settings for daylight saving time changeover also appear.



Example: Daylight saving time automatically changes from 02:00 to 03:00 a.m. on Sunday in the last week of March.

The selections are:

- No SU/WI: There is no automatic daylight saving time changeover
- Central Europe: template for Central Europe
- Western Europe: template for Western Europe
- Eastern Europe: template for Eastern Europe

Customised settings are also possible.

#### Quit

The app is closed properly.

#### Help





#### Software info



#### Theben AG

www.theben.de/product/2080095 www.theben.de/dali2-en

### 7.2 Create project

When the app is opened for the first time, the following main menu appears:



 $(\mathbf{\hat{I}})$ A project can easily be imported, see Chapter 7.1 App basic settings, Import project.



#### Figure 2

 $\pm$  Define the number of floors and rooms. Floors and rooms can also be moved.

Delete floor or room.

Change the labelling of the floor or room. Floors and rooms can also be moved.

Copy room. The structure and parameter settings are copied.

#### A set-up project looks like this:



Figure 3



+ In order to get into the rooms, the + sign must first be deactivated. Then you can click on any room.

The following window appears:

🔹 daliplug File Help		-	٥	×
$\leftarrow$		Office Building London Square		
		Тор		
- <u>Å-</u>				
Office 1.1				
	_			pt
Lighting group	eft			Rig
Presence group				
Free scene				
Group-oriented				
scene				
		Bottom		
		Select master		

Figure 4

The labelling of the bars "Top", "Bottom", "Left" and "Right" can be customised. By tapping or dragging and dropping the groups and scenes, the desired structure can be created.

💽 daliplug File Help			- 0	×
<i>←</i>		Office Building London Square		
		Window		]
1. upper floor		Lighting group: Window       1     2       1     2	() ≑	
		Lighting group Interior       1     2       1     2	<b>⊕</b>	
Lighting group 🕼 🎸	Door	Lighting group: Wall lighting	© ≑	Right
Presence group		Presence group: Presence group 1	<b></b>	
Free scene		Group-oriented scene: Group-oriented scene 1  Value Value Value Value Value Value Value 4	ŧ	
scene		Free scene 1	ŧ	
		bottom Select made		1

Figure 5

For the lighting group, some parameters can already be preset and the name assigned:

Lighting group presettings	
Name	
Source of light measurement :	Interior 🗸
Control selection :	Tunable White (HCL) 🗸 🗸
Cancel	ОК

Depending on the selection of the control, the corresponding icons already appear in the top right of the blue bar of the lighting group:



The parameters and other settings of the groups and scenes can also be created in this phase. This offers the advantage that only the assignment of the DALI participants has to be carried out during start-up.

### 7.2.1 Export project

After briefly tapping the icon 🔤, the desired project can be selected on the left-hand side.

daliplug     File Help							-	٥	×
	theben DALF2 RS Plug								
	H	H-	ò	1	ß				
	Office Building London Square								



Then, a pop-up window appears:

Project export  Password protection  Password protection  Allow configuration and reading  Pable basic parameters  Enable time switch programs Restriction to preferred control commands  Cancel OK							
Password protection  Allow configuration and reading  Allow configuration and reading  Finable basic parameters  Enable expert parameters  Enable time switch programs  Restriction to preferred control commands  Cancel OK	Project export						
Allow configuration and reading  Allow configuration and reading  Cancel	<ul> <li>Password protection</li> </ul>						
Allow configuration and reading  Enable basic parameters Enable expert parameters Enable time switch programs Restriction to preferred control commands Cancel OK	Output						
	Allow configuration and reading						
Enable expert parameters     Enable time switch programs     Restriction to preferred control commands     Cancel OK	<ul> <li>Enable basic parameters</li> </ul>						
Enable time switch programs     Restriction to preferred control commands     Cancel OK	Enable expert parameters						
Restriction to preferred control commands Cancel OK	Enable time switch programs						
Cancel OK	Restriction to preferred control commands						
	Cancel OK						

The project can be exported with or without password protection. If password protection has been selected, an additional icon appears after the import of the project file



After a short tap on the icon 💿 , the password can be entered. In the project, all parameters can again be changed, and the system can be configured.

If "Allow configuration and reading" is activated, the system can be configured with the exported project file. Otherwise, configuration and reading are blocked.

If "Release basic parameters" is activated, all basic parameters can be changed with the exported project file. Otherwise, changes to the basic parameters are blocked.

If "Expert parameters" is activated, all expert parameters can be changed with the exported project file. Otherwise, changes to the expert parameters are blocked.

If "Release time programs" is activated, all time programs can be changed or newly created with the exported project file. Otherwise, changes to the time programs are blocked.

If "Restriction to preferred control commands" is activated, only control commands for which the asterisk has been activated can be executed with the exported project file. Otherwise, all control commands can be executed.



After confirming with OK appears:

- in Windows, the Explorer window where the project file can be saved at the desired location.
- in Android and iOS a selection of e-mail services. We recommend using Microsoft Outlook.

### 7.3 Setting parameters of groups and scenes

The parameters are accessed by tapping the pencil icon

▲ daliplug File Help			- 0	×
$\leftarrow$		Office Building London Square		
		Window		
1. upper floor		Lighting group: Window	() ≑	
-Ö- Office 1.1		à		
			() ≑	
		à		
Lighting group	Door	Uphing group. Wall lighting	(;) <b>≑</b>	Right
Presence group		Presence group: Presence group 1	¢	
		Group-oriented scene: Group-oriented scene 1	¢	
Free scene		Value     Value     Value     Value       a     1     2     3		
scene		Free scene: Free scene 1	ŧ	
	_	Bottom		
		Select matter		

5 tabs are available for configuration:

- Basic for the most important parameter settings
- Expert some complex settings that should only be changed by a specialist
- Time programs settings for time-dependent actions
- Control commands execution of test functions, etc.
- Diagnosis information for error analysis



### 7.3.1 Lighting group

#### Basic

Parameter for Ligh	ting group				
Basic	🔛 Expert	time programs	Control command	Diagnosis	ß
		Name	·	•	
		Window			
		Number of ECGs :	- 5 +		
		Number of relays :	- 0 +		
		Number of buttons :	- 1 +		
		Function :	Control 🗸		
		Brightness setpoint value (lux) :	- 500 +		
		Lighting time delay (hh:mm:ss) :	00:10:00		
		Function mode :	Fully automatic device 🛩		
	Can	rel	Sa S	N/P	

#### Name

After creating the lighting group, the assigned light measurement is entered here as the default name. Then, the desired name of the lighting group can be entered.

#### Number of EBs

The number of required EBs to be displayed in the lighting group can be entered here. This number should match the real situation in the room. If there are fewer placeholders than intended, not all EBs can be assigned to this lighting group. However, too many placeholders do not interfere with the operation. The maximum input value is 64. Please also refer to Chapter <u>5. Connection</u>.

#### Number of relays

The number of required relays to be displayed in the lighting group can be entered here. This number should match the real situation in the room. If there are fewer placeholders than intended, not all relays can be assigned to this lighting group. However, too many placeholders do not interfere with the operation. The maximum input value is 4.

#### Number of push buttons

The number of required push buttons can be entered here. The maximum input value is 10.

#### Function

The lighting group can be operated in switching mode or in constant lighting control.

This setting is only possible in Basic if the control is set as "Standard" in Expert. If the control has been selected as "Tunable White (HCL)", "RGB" or "RGBW", the function cannot be changed in Basic.

#### Brightness setpoint value

The brightness setpoint value defines the minimum required brightness. The currently prevailing brightness is measured underneath the presence detector. If the prevailing brightness is below the setpoint value, the light is switched on when a presence is detected (in configuration type fully automatic device). A separate brightness setpoint value is available for each lighting group.

With the switching mode function, the brightness measurement can also be deactivated (measurement off). The brightness has no influence, and the lighting groups only switch according to presence/absence.

#### Lighting time delay

The time delay can be adjusted between 10 s and 120 min. It adjusts automatically to the user's behaviour and can increase to max. 30 minutes or drop back to the set time. With settings  $\leq 2 \text{ min or } \geq 30 \text{ min}$ , the time delay remains unchanged at the set value.

#### Configuration type

Lighting control via the presence detector operates fully automatically for increased comfort or semi-automatically for greater energy savings. The lighting switches on and off automatically as a "fully automatic device". As a "semi-automatic device", the lighting must always be switched on manually. The lighting is switched off automatically.

#### Expert

Parameter for Lig	hting group				
Basic	141 Expert	Time programs	Control command	Diagnosis	J
		Operation without presence influence :	no 🗸		
		Light measurement source :	Window 🗸		
		Short-term presence :	on 🗸		
		Switch-on dimming value (%) :	- 50 +		
		Minimum dimming value (%) :	- 10 +		
		Maximum dimming value (%) :	- 100 +		
		Dimming curve selection :	Normal 🗸		
		Switch-off brightness (hh:mm:ss) :	00:10:00		
		Switch-off brightness (never off) :			
		Control rate :	Standard 🗸		
		Dimming speed manual dimming :	Standard 🗸		
		Behaviour after manual dimming :	school 🗸		
		Staircase light function :	off 🗸 🗸		
		Standby time (hh:mm:ss) :	00:00:00		
		Standby time (always on) :			
	Cance		S	ave	

#### Operation without presence influence

Setting no: The lighting group is controlled by presence and brightness. Setting yes: The lighting group is controlled by brightness only, independent of motion.

#### Light measurement source

The presence detector measures artificial light and daylight by means of three directed light measurements, see Chapter <u>7.4. Setting master parameters</u>, Expert. The selections are:

- Light measurement interior
- Light measurement centre
- Light measurement window
- Light measurement integral (average of all 3 light measurements)

When assigning the light measurement, make sure that the lamps are in the area of the selected light measurement. Further information, see Chapter <u>7.4. Setting master</u> <u>parameters</u>, Expert.

#### Short-term presence

If someone enters an unoccupied room only briefly and leaves within 30 s, the lighting is switched off early after 2 min (short-term presence). Short-term presence can be used for the fully automatic device and semi-automatic device configuration type.

#### Switch-on dimming value

In switching mode and in constant lighting control, the lighting is switched on with the switchon dimming value.

#### Minimum dimming value/maximum dimming value

The upper and lower limits of the output value of the lighting group can be set with both the <minimum dimming value> and <maximum dimming value> parameters.

The scenes and time programs are an exception. Here, the dimming values can be set independently of this setting.

#### Dimming curve selection

There are 2 dimming curves to choose from for controlling the DALI EB – Normal (logarithmic) and Linear.



The DALI-2 EB must be able to support the linear dimming curve!

#### Switch-off at brightness

In constant lighting control, the lighting can be switched off if the brightness is sufficient. If the lighting is turned down to the set <minimum dimming value>, the lighting will be switched off after the time set in the parameter <switch off at brightness>. With the selection "never off", the lighting will never be switched off. This behaviour is valid, as long as persons are present.



This parameter is not available with function = switching mode and with the selection control = RGB/RGBW! At these settings, the parameter <switch off at brightness> is hidden.

#### Control speed

In the constant lighting control function, the speed of the constant lighting control can be set with the <control speed> parameter. 3 values are available:

- Standard: The behaviour is optimally set. The control function is slow and barely perceptible.
- Medium: The control is a little faster.
- Fast: The control is fast.

#### Dimming speed of manual dimming

When dimming by push button or remote control, 2 speeds can be selected with this parameter.

#### Response after manual dimming

In constant lighting control, the response after manual dimming can be selected using this parameter.

- office: Constant lighting control remains temporarily active as the new setpoint after manual dimming to the current brightness value. After the lighting time delay, the set setpoint value is restored.
- **school**: Constant lighting control is temporarily interrupted by manual dimming. The setpoint remains unchanged.

#### Staircase light function

When the staircase light function is activated, it is not possible to switch off the lighting group manually. If the staircase light function is deactivated, the lighting can be switched on and off manually.

#### Standby time/standby dimming value

When the standby time is activated, the lighting is not switched off after the lighting time delay has elapsed but remains set to the standby dimming value as an orientation light.

The standby function acts as an orientation light. After the lighting time delay, the lighting is set to the standby dimming value (1-75%) of the lamp output). The standby time can be set between 0 s and 60 min or permanently. If the room brightness is above the brightness setpoint value, the lighting switches off. The lighting automatically returns to the standby brightness if the room brightness falls below the brightness setpoint value. When the room is entered again, the presence detector returns to the set brightness setpoint value, either automatically (fully automatic device) or after the push button is pressed (semi-automatic device).

#### IR group addresses

This parameter is applied when using the user remote control "theSenda B" or "theSenda S".

Any and several group addresses can be assigned to each lighting group. The remote control can only switch or dim lighting groups if the remote control button and the lighting group have the same IR group address. With the selection of IR group addresses, adjacent lighting groups that are controlled with the user remote control can be separated from each other.

The IR group addresses I and II are permanently assigned on theSenda S to the 4 buttons and 2 scene buttons and cannot be changed. Further information can be found in the operating instructions for theSenda S. On theSenda B remote control, the IR group addresses can be freely assigned to the buttons.

#### **Control selection**

For the lighting group, 3 different control modes are available:

- Standard
- Tunable White (HCL)
- RGB
- RGBW



#### Setting the colour gradient

#### Tunable White (HCL)

If "Tunable White (HCL)" was selected in the control selection, the following window appears when clicking the "Edit" button:

Changeover for input of colour temperature - lux value



7 HCL templates are available:

- Daylight winter
- Daylight summer
- Office
- Open-plan office
- School
- Industry 1-shift operation
- Industry 2-shift operation
- Care homes
- Hospital
- Hallways/corridors
- Private

All lighting groups follow the selected HCL profile. The transitions are interpolated. The templates can be customised by dragging the bar in the diagram or by entering the values in the table. With the min./max. values, it is very easy to adjust the range to the lamp. The button in the middle can be used to switch between colour temperature and lux value for adjustment.

Customised templates are saved under "User-defined".

CAUTION

**Only specialists are allowed to adjust the HCL profiles.** If HCL profiles are changed, a warning appears.

## 

In the period from 2 hours after sunset to a maximum of 1 hour before sunrise, the colour temperature should not exceed 4100 K.

## **()**

Only one HCL profile can be run in a room. If there is more than one lighting group with HCL, the settings are automatically adopted for all lighting groups.

#### RGB

If "RGB" was selected in the control selection, the following window appears when clicking the "Edit" button:



Changeover for input RGB colour – dimming value

Colour gradient and dimming values are set as desired by dragging the bar in the diagram or by entering the values in the table.

The button in the middle can be used to switch between colour and dimming value for adjustment. Each lighting group can have its individual setting.

The colour of the lighting group changes every minute, but there is only one bar for every hour. The transitions are interpolated.

#### RGBW

If "RGBW" was selected in the control selection, the following window appears when clicking the "Edit" button:





The drop-down menu can be used to switch between the RGB colour curve and the white component curve:



The colour gradient or white component gradient and the dimming values are set as desired by dragging the bar in the diagram or by entering the values in the table.

The button in the middle can be used to switch between colour gradient and dimming value or white component and dimming value for adjustment. Each lighting group can have its individual setting.

The colour of the lighting group including the white component changes every minute, but there is only one bar for every hour. The transitions are interpolated.



#### Time programs

The time switch is a weekly clock accurate to the minute. It is event-driven and does not do any review. Commands are only executed if the time of the time switch corresponds to the time of the switch program.

The time switch triggers one action at a time. This remains active until it is overwritten by another time switch command, push button, scene, or the detector.



igli If several time programs are triggered at the same time, the order of the calls cannot be determined.



Summer/winter changeover see Chapter 7.1 App basic settings.

Parameter for Ligh	hting group				
Basic	<b>Ĩ</b> ≱∳ Expert	Time programs	Control command	Diagnosis	ſ
		+ õ			
		Close window			

+ By tapping the + sign, a time program can be created.

Delete the desired time program.

Parameter for Lig	hting group						
Basic TH Expert		Time programs		Control command		Diagnosis	J
		Time		[	15:54 🖉	·	
		Mon Tue	Wed Thu	Fri Sat			
		Function mode			~		
	1	Function mode		Fully automatic d	evice 🗸		
		Function mode (Parameter	s)				
	•				<u> </u>		
	Cancel				Sa	ve	

10 parameters or actions are available, which can be changed depending on time:

- Operation without presence influence
  - no: The lighting group is controlled by presence.
  - yes: The lighting group is controlled independently of presence.
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at Expert is used.
- Configuration type
  - Fully automatic device: The lighting is switched on and off automatically.
  - Semi-automatic device: The lighting must always be switched on manually. The lighting is switched off automatically.
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at BASIC is used.
- Brightness setpoint value (parameter selection control = standard)
  - Change the brightness setpoint value or switch off the light measurement [10..3000 lux].
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at BASIC is used.
- Brightness setpoint value and colour temperature (parameter selection control = Tunable White HCL)
  - Change the brightness setpoint value [10..3000 lux].
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at BASIC is used.
  - Change colour temperature [2700..8000 K]. After 2 hours, the colour temperature follows the selected HCL template again!
  - Parameter activated: The colour temperature follows the selected HCL template again.
  - Change RGB colour (parameter selection control = RGB)
  - Change the RGB colour.
  - Parameter activated: The RGB colour follows the selected curve again.
- Change RGBW colour (parameter selection control = RGBW)
- Change the RGB colour and white component.
  - Parameter activated: The RGBW colour follows the selected curve again.
- Standby dimming value
  - Change the dimming value [1..75%].
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at Expert is used.
- Standby time
  - Change the stand-by time or activate permanently on [0 s..3 h].
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at Expert is used.
- Switch-on dimming value
  - Change the switch-on dimming value [1..100%].
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at Expert is used.
- Override lighting group
  - Change the dimming value of the entire lighting group [0..100%]. This override is active as long as people are present. When the time delay has elapsed, the lighting group is in automatic mode again.
- Activate automatic lighting group
  - The entire lighting group goes into automatic mode and the RGB/RGBW colour or HCL follows the selected curve again.
- Change function
  - Control: The lighting group is operated in constant lighting control.
  - Switching: The lighting group is operated in switching mode.
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at BASIC is used.
- Lighting time delay
  - Change the time delay [10 s ...120 min].
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at BASIC is used.

Parameter for Ligh	ting group				
Basic	<b>Tit</b> Expert	Time programs	Control command	Diagnosis	J
		Time	15:56	←	
		Mon Tue Wed Thu	Fri Sat Sun		
		Brightness point value	~		
		Bright ess setpoint value Brightness setpoint value (Measurement off)	350 lux 🖉		
		Brightness setpoint value (Parameters)			
	Cance	1		Save	

The desired day of the week can be selected by tapping and the time can be entered. The time program record is created by pressing the "Save" button.

#### Example:



During the night from 8:00 p.m. to 6:30 a.m., the brightness setpoint is reduced to 350 lux. Every working day from 6:30 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., the brightness setpoint (500 lux) is changed to the set parameter value in BASIC. At the weekend, the brightness setpoint remains at 350 lux all day.


### **Control commands**

Parameter for Lig	ghting group					
Basic	14 Expert	Time programs	Control comma	nd D	Diagnosis	J
	Sw	ritch lighting group :	On Off	☆		
	Sw	ritch all lighting groups :	On Off	☆		
	Te	ach-in :	Activate	☆		
	Те	ach-in for all lighting groups :	Activate	☆		
		Close windov	N			

### Switch lighting group

This override is active as long as people are present. When the time delay has elapsed, the lighting group is in automatic mode again.

### Teach-in

During the teach-in process, the currently measured brightness value is adopted as brightness setpoint value. Values outside the permitted range are automatically set to the appropriate limit value.

### Diagnosis

Parameter for Lig	hting group							
Basic	141	Expert	111	Time programs	U	Control command	Diagnosis	J
		Rese	et parameter			Activate		
		Actu	al brightness value	(lux)		0		
		Curn	ent output dimming	value (%)		0		
				Close windo	w			

### Brightness actual value (lux)

Display of the current brightness value of the selected light measurement. This value is adjusted with the corresponding room correction factor. The value is updated every second.

### Current output dimming value (%)

Display of the current output dimming value of the corresponding lighting group. The value is updated every second.

### Reset parameter

All parameters of the corresponding lighting group are set to factory settings. The presence detector is supplied with the following parameter values:

Basic	Number of EBs	5
	Number of relays	0
	Number of nush huttons/sliders	1
	Function	Control
	Brightness setopint value (lux)	500
	Prightness setpoint value (massurement	
	off)	
	Lighting time delay (hh:mm:ss)	00:10:00
	Configuration type	Auto
Expert	Operation without presence influence	no
	Light measurement source	according to the import
	5	dialoque window
	Room correction factor	0.3
	Brinktness measurement value (lux)	500
	Short-term presence	00
	Switch-on dimming value (%)	50
	Minimum dimming value (%)	10
	Maximum dimming value (%)	100
	Switch off at heightness (hhummiss)	
	Switch-off at brightness (nn:mm:ss)	
	Switch-orr at brightness (never orr)	<inactive></inactive>
	Lontrol speed	Standard
	Dimming speed of manual dimming	Standard
	Response after manual dimming	school
	Staircase light function	off
	Standby time: (hh:mm:ss)	00:00:00
	Standby time (always on)	<inactive></inactive>
	Standby dimming value (%)	10
	IR group address	according to factory setting
		"source light measurement":
		Window: I
		Centre: II,
		Interior: III
		Integral: I + II + III
	Control selection	Standard
	Brightness setpoint value (lux)	500
	HCL gradient	2700
	Colour gradient	Group 1: red (254/0/0)
		Group 2: green (0/254/0)
		Group 3: blue (0/0/254)
		Group 4: violet (254/0/254)
	Colour gradient	White: 0
Time programs	Function	Control
	Function (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
	Operation without presence influence	on
	Operation without presence influence	<inactive></inactive>
	(parameter)	
	Brightness setpoint value (lux)	500
	Brightness setpoint value (measurement	<inactive></inactive>
	off)	
	Brightness setpoint value (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
	Brightness setpoint value (lux)	500
	Brightness setpoint value (measurement off)	<inactive></inactive>
	Brightness setpoint value (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>

Tunable White colour temperature (K)	5000
Tunable White colour temperature	<inactive></inactive>
(parameter)	
Brightness setpoint value (lux)	500
Brightness setpoint value (measurement	<inactive></inactive>
off)	
Brightness setpoint value (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
RGB colour	Red: 0
	Green: O
	Blue: 254
RGB colour	White: 0
RGB colour (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
Lighting time delay (hh:mm:ss)	00:10:00
Lighting time delay (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
Configuration type	Auto
Configuration type (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
Switch-on dimming value (%)	50
Switch-on dimming value (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
Standby time: (hh:mm:ss)	00:00:00
Standby time (always on)	<inactive></inactive>
Standby time (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
Standby dimming value (%)	10
Standby dimming value (parameter)	<inactive></inactive>
Override lighting group	100

### 7.3.2 Presence group

### Basic

Parameter for Presence			
Basic	Time programs	() Diagnosis	I
	Name	•	
	Presence group 1		
	Number of relays :	- 1 +	
	Presence switch-on delay (hh:mm:ss):	00:00:00	
	Presence time delay (hh:mm:ss) :	00:10:00 🖉	
	Cancel	Save	

### Name

After creating the presence group, "Presence 1" will automatically be entered here as the default name. Then, the desired name of the presence group can be entered.

### Number of relays

The number of required relays to be displayed in the presence group can be entered here. This number should match the real situation in the room. If there are fewer placeholders than intended, not all relays can be assigned to this presence group. Too many placeholders do not interfere with the operation. The maximum input value is 4.

### Presence switch-on delay

The DALI relay assigned to the presence group closes when someone is present, regardless of brightness and after the set switch-on delay has elapsed. Push buttons and configuration type (fully automatic device/semi-automatic device) do not affect the relay contact. The switch-on delay is adjustable from 0 s - 30 min.

### Presence time delay

The DALI relay assigned to the presence group only opens in case of absence after the set time delay has elapsed. The switch-on delay is adjustable from 10 s - 120 min.

### Time programs

Parameter for Presence			
Basic	Time programs	Diagnosis	P
	Time	16:01	
	Mon Tue Wed Thu	Fri Sat Sun	
	Override presence group Override presence group (Parameters)	ûn 🗸	
	Cancel	Save	

The presence group can be overridden depending on time:

- Override presence group
  - **On**: The presence group is switched on. The DALI relay assigned to the presence group closes.
  - **Off**: The presence group is switched off. The DALI relay assigned to the presence group opens.
  - This override is active as long as people are present. When the time delay has elapsed, the presence group is in automatic mode again.
  - Parameter activated: The presence group returns to automatic mode.

Observe the switching thresholds for the relay! Further information can be found in Chapter <u>7.6.2 Relay</u>.



### Diagnosis

Parameter for Presence			
Basic	III Time programs	() Diagnosis	J
	Reset parameter	Activate	
	CI	ose window	

### Reset parameter

All parameters of the corresponding presence group are set to factory settings. The presence detector is supplied with the following parameter values:

Basic	Number of relays	1
	Presence switch-on delay	0 s
	Presence time delay	10 min
Time programs	Override time programs	ON

### 7.3.3 Switching group

The switching group is independent of presence and does not respond to light measurement. The switching group can be controlled by using push buttons or time programs.

### Basic

Parameter for Switching group			
Basic	Time programs	Control command	$\triangleright$
	Name		
	Switching group 1		
	Number of ECGs :	- 0 +	
	Number of relays :	- 1 +	
	Number of buttons :	- 1 +	
	Cancel	Save	

DALI relays and EBs can be integrated into a switching group.

### Name

After creating the switching group, "Switch 1" is entered here as the default name. Then, the desired name of the switching group can be entered.

#### Number of EBs

The number of required EBs to be displayed in the switching group can be entered here. This number should match the real situation in the room. If there are fewer placeholders than intended, not all EBs can be assigned to this switching group. However, too many placeholders do not interfere with the operation. The maximum input value is 64. Please also refer to Chapter <u>5. Connection</u>.

### Number of relays

The number of required relays to be displayed in the switching group can be entered here. This number should match the real situation in the room. If there are fewer placeholders than intended, not all relays can be assigned to this switching group. However, too many placeholders do not interfere with the operation. The maximum input value is 4.

### Number of push buttons

The number of required push buttons can be entered here. The maximum input value is 10.

# Farameter for Switching group Basic Time Image: Time Image: Time Override switching groups Override switching groups (Automatic)

The switching group can be overridden depending on time:

- Override switching group
  - **On**: The switching group is switched on.
  - Off: The switching group is switched off.
  - This override is active until an action is carried out again by push button, scene or time program.
  - **Automatic** activated: The switching group returns to the state that was triggered with the push button before the time program.

Manual theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL UP



### **Control commands**

Parameter for Switching group			
Basic []]	Time programs	Control command	$\triangleright$
Override sv	vitching group :	On Off 📩	
	Close window		

Manual override of the switching group. This override is active until an action is carried out again by push button, scene or time program.



### 7.3.4 Group-oriented scene

The group-oriented scene controls an entire lighting group and/or switching group. The scene is assigned to the lighting or switching group by drag and drop. Drag the desired value to the desired lighting group or switching group. In order to check, an already assigned value can be tapped. The corresponding lighting group or switching group lights up yellow. A group-oriented scene can be called up via push button or remote control. What the scene should do is determined by the parameters. The parameters are accessed by tapping the pencil icon

A scene cannot be assigned in offline mode! The DALI participants must be assigned in the groups.



### Basic

Parameter for Group-orien	ted scene			
Basic	Expert	14 Control command	Diagno	sis 🖉
	Name	·		
	Group-oriented scen	ne 1		
	Number of buttons :		1 +	
	Scene with user rem	ote control : Without remote control	ol 🗸	
	Value 1		~	
	Switch-on dimming	value (%) :	50 +	
	Interior		ò	
	Cancel		Save	

#### Name

After creating the scene, "Group scene 1" is entered here as the default name. Then, the desired name of the scene can be entered.

#### Number of push buttons

The number of required push buttons can be entered here. The maximum input value is 10.

### Scene with user remote control

The following selection is available:

- Without remote control (scene can only be called up with the push button)
- With remote control as scene 1 (call up the scene with the Scene 1 button on the remote control)
- With remote control as scene 2 (call up the scene with the Scene 2 button on the remote control)

If "With remote control as Scene 1" or "2" has been selected, the following parameters also appear:

#### IR group addresses

Any one and several group addresses can be assigned for each scene. The remote control can only call up scenes if the remote control button and the scene have the same IR group address. With the selection of IR group addresses, scenes that are controlled with the user remote control can be separated from each other.

The IR group addresses I and II are permanently assigned on theSenda S to the 4 buttons and 2 scene buttons and cannot be changed. Further information can be found in the operating instructions of theSenda S. On theSenda B remote control, the IR group addresses can be freely assigned to the buttons. Further information can be found in Chapter <u>7.8 User remote control</u>.

### Important: Select the desired value!

- The selections are:
- Value 1
- Value 2
- Value 3
- Value 4



### Switch-on dimming value (%)

Enter the desired switch-on dimming value. If the control has been selected as "Tunable White", "RGB" or "RGBW" at Expert, the setting of the switch-on dimming value is deactivated here. The setting is made at Expert.

The settings of the "Minimum dimming value" and "Maximum dimming value" parameters in the lighting group do not influence the switch-on dimming value of the scene.

### Expert

### **Tunable White control**

Parameter for Group-or	riented scene			
Basic	[]] Expert	Control command	Diagnosis	ð
	Value 1		~	
	Control :	Tunable White	×	
	Switch-on dimming	value (%) : 50	) +	
	Tunable White (K) :	Neutral 4500	к 🗸	
	Each lighting scene is	s limited to a maximum of 2 hours for safety reas	ions.	
	Cancel		Save	

Important: Select the desired value!

### Tunable White (K)

The desired lighting mood can be selected here:

- Concentration 6500 K
- Alert 5500 K
- Neutral 4500 K
- Calm 3500 K
- Relaxed 2700 K
- User-defined

At "User-defined" any value from 2700 to 8000 K can be entered.

With a double click on the scene button, the lighting group goes into daylight automatic and follows the selected HCL profile.

igcup When the scene is called up, it is limited to a maximum of 2 hours for security reasons.



### 7.3.5 Free scene

The free scene controls any selected EBs and/or relays. The scene is assigned to the EBs and relays by drag and drop.

> Drag the desired value to the desired EB or relay.

In order to check, an already assigned value can be tapped. The corresponding EBs and relays light up yellow.

A free scene can only be called up via push button or remote control.

Otherwise, the settings and selection are the same as for the group-oriented scene, see Chapter <u>7.3.4 Group-oriented scene</u>.



### 7.4 Setting master parameters

The parameters are accessed by tapping the master. The master must already be connected with the app!



### Basic

Parameter for Mast	er				
Basic	<b>I</b> II Expert	Time programs	Control command	Diagnosis	J
		Name .	•		
		Master Office 1.1			
		Remove master:	õ		
		Detection sensitivity :	Level 3 (Standard) 🛛 🗸		
		LED display movement :			
	Cancel			Save	

### Remove master

After clicking on the icon, a pop-up message appears asking whether the master should really be removed. After confirming with OK, all assignments of the group participants will be deleted! The start-up for this room must be carried out again.

### Detection sensitivity

The presence detector has 5 sensitivity increments. The basic setting is the middle increment (3). The increments can be interpreted as follows:

Increment	Sensitivity
1	Very insensitive
2	Insensitive
3	Standard
4	Sensitive
5	Very sensitive

By selecting the presence test mode, the set sensitivity increment is not changed.

### LED motion display

Motion detection can be displayed via the RGB LED.

- Check box deactivated: No display of motion.
- Check box activated: When motion is detected, the RGB LED lights up briefly in green. Otherwise the RGB LED is switched off.



### Expert

Parameter for Ma	aster				
Basic	111 Expert	Time programs	Control command	Diagnosis	J
		Energy saving mode :	eco ~		
		Room correction factor Interior :	- 0.30 +		
		Brightness measurement value Interior (lux) :	- 500 +		
		Room correction factor Centre :	- 0.30 +		
		Brightness measurement value Centre (lux) :	- 500 +		
		Room correction factor Window :	- 0.30 +		
		Brightness measurement value Window (lux) :	- 500 +		
		Room correction factor Integral :	- 0.30 +		
		Brightness measurement value Integral (lux) :	- 500 +		
	Cano	rel		Save	

### Energy saving mode

The "eco" selection stands for an ideal switching response, while "eco plus" stands for maximum energy savings.

- **eco:** The lighting time delay adapts to the user behaviour in a self-learning way. It does not drop below the set value.
- **eco plus:** The set lighting time delay remains unchanged (no self-learning effect). Faster response to brightness detection than with the eco mode.

#### Room correction factor/brightness measurement value

The room correction factor is a measurement for the difference between brightness measurements on the ceiling and on the work area. The brightness value on the ceiling is influenced by the installation location, the incidence of light, the position of the sun, the weather conditions, as well as the reflection properties of the room and the furniture.

With the room correction factor, the measured brightness value is adjusted to the conditions in the room and in this way can be matched to the luxmeter value (1) measured at the surface beneath theRonda S360 DALI-2 HCL.





Brightness value at the ceiling Room correction factor = -----Brightness value on the work surface

We recommend the following procedure:

- Place the luxmeter or theSenda B remote control with integrated luxmeter on the work surface below theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL and enter the measured lux value at parameters <Brightness measurement value> and send it to theRonda P360 DALI-2 HCL.
- The room correction factor is calculated from this automatically. Values between 0.05 and 2.0 are permitted. Calculated or entered values outside the permitted range are automatically set to the appropriate limit value.

igcup During lux measurements, observe the relevant distances (see illustration above).

- > Carry out all measurements at table height. If Light measurement source has been selected:
  - Light measurement interior ightarrow Lux measurement in the direction of the interior area
  - Light measurement centre ightarrow Lux measurement in the centre (below the detector)
  - Light measurement window ightarrow Lux measurement in the direction of the window
  - Light measurement integral → Calculate average of all 3 lux measurements

The standard value of the room correction factor is 0.3, which is suitable for most applications. Changes are only appropriate in strongly deviating situations.



### Time programs

Parameter for Master							
Basic	11 Expert	<u>T</u> it		🕚 Contr	ol command	Diagnosis	J
		Time			16:15 🖉		
		Mon Tue	Wed Thu	Fri	Sat Sun		
		Detection sensitivity			~		
		Detection sensitivity		Leve	I 3 (Standard)∨		
		Detection sensitivity (Pa	rameters)				
	Cano	el			Sav	/e	

2 parameters or actions are available, which can be changed depending on time:

- Override central light
  - On: All lighting groups are switched on to the set switch-on dimming value. This override is active as long as people are present. When the time delay has elapsed, the lighting group is in automatic mode again.
  - Off: All light groups are switched off when no people are present.
- Detection sensitivity
  - Increments 1 to 3 are available for selection.
  - For more information on detection sensitivity, see 7.4 Setting master parameters.

### Control commands

Parameter for Mast	er						
Basic	<b>Ť</b> ↓† Expert	Time prog	rams C	Control comn	hand	Diagnosis	J
	Te	st presence :		On Off	☆		
	Te	st lighting :		On Off	☆		
	R	estart :		Activate	☆		
			Close window				

### Presence test

Presence test mode is used to test presence detection of the master and wiring. After activating with "On", the presence detector goes directly into test mode:

- Every movement is indicated in green by the RGB LED.
- The lighting is switched on when there is movement.
- Constant lighting control is deactivated (switching mode).
- Teach-in cannot be activated in test mode.
- If there is no movement, the lighting is switched off after 10 s.
- Brightness measurement is deactivated, presence detector does not respond to brightness.
- Standby function is deactivated.
- The presence detector responds as in the "fully automatic device" configuration type even if "semi-automatic device" is set.
- Test mode ends automatically after 10 min. The presence detector restarts (see Chapter <u>7.4</u> <u>Setting master parameters</u>, control commands, restart).

#### Light test

The light test mode is used to check the brightness threshold and the constant lighting control. After activating with "On", the presence detector goes directly into test mode:

- The RGB LED indicates the light test mode with a green colour (4.8 s On; 0.32 s Off).
- The presence detector responds as in normal operating mode; it only responds faster to brightness/darkness.
- To simulate the response, either actuate the blinds or illuminate the area below the presence detector.
- Test mode ends automatically after 10 min. The presence detector restarts (see Chapter <u>7.4</u> <u>Setting master parameters</u>, control commands, restart).

Do not use a torch to switch the presence detector! The adaptive light switching thresholds would be falsified!

### Restart

After the restart is triggered, the presence detector goes through two phases, which are indicated by the RGB LED:

1. Start-up phase (30 s)

- First, the DALI bus is scanned and the RGB LED flashes blue. During this time, the master does not respond to all BLE telegrams.
- The RGB LED flashes violet at one-second intervals, the lighting is switched on with the switch-on dimming value.
- The presence detector does not respond to push button commands or user remote control.
- If there is no movement, the lighting is switched off after 30 s.

### 2. Operation

- The RGB LED is off. The constant light control or switching mode are started.
- The presence detector is ready for operation.



### Diagnosis

Parameter for Ma	aster					
Basic	<b>Ĩ</b> ₩ Expert	Time programs	Q	Control command	Diagnosis	ð
	Re	set parameter		Activate		
	Fa	ctory settings		Activate		
	Sta	atus		× .		
	DA	LI system information		Idle		
	Ac	tual brightness value Interior (lux)		448		
	Ac	tual brightness value Centre (lux)		459		
	Ac	tual brightness value Window (lux)		522		
	Ac	tual brightness value Integral (lux)		473		
		Close windo	W			

#### Reset parameter

All parameters of the master are set to factory settings. The presence detector is supplied with the following parameter values:

Basic	Detection sensitivity	Increment 3
	LED motion display	off
Expert	Energy saving mode	есо
	Room correction factor interior	0.3
	Brightness measurement value interior (lux)	500
	Room correction factor centre	0.3
	Brightness measurement value centre (lux)	500
	Room correction factor window	0.3
	Brightness measurement value window (lux)	500
	Room correction factor integral	0.3
	Brightness measurement value integral (lux)	500
Time programs	Override central light	on
	Detection sensitivity	Increment 3

### Factory settings

All connected DALI devices are reset to factory settings and the short address is deleted.

The assignment of the DALI participants will be deleted! The start-up for this room must be carried out again.

### Status

Display of master status:

- green check mark: Master is OK.
- red exclamation mark and error number: error at master. In case of error number 4, please reset the master to factory settings. In case of all other error numbers. Please return for repair.

The display is updated every second.

### DALI system information

Display of status during DALI configuration:

- Idle: Master is in normal operation
- Busy: Master scans the DALI bus
- Emergency operation: Not all DALI devices are assigned
- **DALI error**: Please check the current consumption of all DALI participants as well as the DALI line for correct wiring and short circuits. Another reason can be too many DALI participants. No more than 64 DALI operating devices or 64 DALI control devices are permitted on the DALI line.
- Group assignment: Detector is in Assign DALI Device mode.
- Action required: Change in the system structure; new or missing DALI participants were discovered. If missing DALI participants become addressable again, the master restarts automatically and goes into normal mode, if possible. If the maximum number of EBs, relays, push buttons or slaves has been exceeded, the corresponding device must be removed from the DALI bus.

The display is updated every second.

### Brightness actual value (lux)

Display of the current brightness value of the corresponding light measurement. This value is adjusted with the corresponding room correction factor. The value is updated every second.



### 7.5 Setting presence sensor parameters

The parameters are accessed by tapping the corresponding sensor.



### Basic

Parameter for Sensor			
Basic	Time programs	() Diagnosis	J
	Name		
	Slave 3		
	Detection sensitivity :	Level 3 (Standard) 🗸 🗸	
	Cancel	Save	

### **Detection sensitivity**

The presence sensor has 5 sensitivity increments. The basic setting is the middle increment (3). The increments can be interpreted as follows:

Increment	Sensitivity
1	Very insensitive
2	Insensitive
3	Standard
4	Sensitive
5	Very sensitive

If presence sensor PlanoSpot 360 DALI-2 S DE, 2030190 is connected, the following parameter also appears:

### Detection zone

The presence sensor has 2 detection zones.

- Standard: Detection area lateral walking 7 m x 7 m at 3 m installation height
- Reduced: Detection area lateral walking 3.8 m x 3.8 m at 3 m installation height

 $igodolmode{\mathbf{D}}$  For further information, see manual PlanoSpot 360 DALI-2 S EN, 2030190.

If presence sensor the Passa P360 DALI-2 S UP, 2010390 is connected, the following parameter also appears:

### Detection area

With this presence sensor, you can select from 3 detection zones.

- Zone 1 and Zone 2: The entire detection area is active (lateral walking 30 m x 4.5 m at 3 m installation height)
- Zone 1: Only the detection area in zone 1 is active (lateral walking 15 m x 4.5 m at 3 m installation height)
- Zone 2: Only the detection area in zone 2 is active (lateral walking 15 m x 4.5 m at 3 m installation height)

igcup Observe the alignment of the presence sensor during installation! For further information, see manual thePassa P360 DALI-2 S UP, 2010390.

### Time programs

Parameter for Sensor			
Basic	Time programs	C Diagnosis	P
	Time	16:38	
	Mon Tue Wed	Thu Fri Sat Sun	
	Detection sensitivity Detection sensitivity (Parameters)	Level 3 (Standard) >>	
Cance	ai	Save	

The detection sensitivity can be changed depending on time:

- Detection sensitivity
  - Increments 1 to 3 are available for selection.
  - Parameter activated: The set parameter value at BASIC is used.
  - For further information on detection sensitivity, see Chapter 7.5 Setting master parameters, Basic.

### Diagnosis

Parameter for Sensor				
Basic	Time programs		Diagnosis	в
	Reset parameter		Activate	
	Factory settings		Activate	
	Status		1	
		-		
		LIOSE WINDOW		

### **Reset parameter**

All parameters of the presence sensor are set to factory settings. The presence sensor is supplied with the following parameter values:



Basic	Detection sensitivity	Increment 3
	Detection zone (PlanoSpot 360 DALI-2 S DE)	Standard
	Detection area (thePassa P360 DALI-2 S UP)	Zone 1 and zone 2
Time programs	Detection sensitivity	Increment 3

### Factory settings

The corresponding presence sensor is reset to factory settings and its short address will be deleted.

The assignment of the presence sensor will be deleted! The presence sensor must be read in again with "Read DALI participants".

### Status

Display of master status:

- green check mark: everything is OK
- red exclamation mark with error number: error at presence sensor. Please read in DALI participants. If the problem is not solved, please contact the service with information on the error number.

The display is updated every second.

### 7.6 Setting parameters of DALI participants

This Chapter describes the settings of the DALI participants. Briefly tapping the desired DALI participant brings up the parameter window. This is only possible if the corresponding DALI participant has already been assigned to a group or scene. The selected DALI participant identifies itself by flashing periodically (1.5 s on and 1.5 s off). Identification is stopped automatically after 12 s.

### 7.6.1 EB

### Basic

Parameter for ECG			
Basic	₩ Diagnosis		P
	Name		
	EVG 1		
	Remove ECG:	õ	
	ECG is used in scene Group-oriented scene 1		
	Cancel	Save	



### **Remove EB**

 $\stackrel{ imes}{ o}$  Clicking removes the EB from the group and moves it to the right column to the unassigned DALI participants. Afterwards, it can be assigned again to any group.



### Diagnosis

Parameter for ECG				
Basic		<u>Î</u> ₩ Diagnosis		J
	Factory settings		Activate	
		Close window		
l		ciose willuow		

### Factory settings

The selected EB is reset to factory settings, the short address is deleted, and it will be removed from the group. The EB must be read in again by "Read DALI participants".



The assignment of the EB is deleted and removed from the system!

### 7.6.2 Relay

### Basic

Parameter for Relay			
Basic	Expert	It   Diagnosis	P
	Name		
	Rel 1		
	Remove relay :	ð	
	Cancel	Save	

### Remove relay

Clicking removes the relay from the group and moves it to the right column to the unassigned DALI participants. Afterwards, it can be assigned again to any group.

**(i)** The name of the relay is not deleted after removal.

### Expert

Parameter for Relay			
Basic	[]] Expert	[₩ Diagnosis	J
	Deactivate upward switch-on threshold :		
	Upward switch-on threshold (%) :	- 1 +	
	Deactivate upward switch-off threshold :		
	Upward switch-off threshold (%) :	- 255 +	
	Deactivate downward switch-on threshold :		
	Downward switch-on threshold (%) :	- 255 +	
	Deactivate Downward switch-off threshold :		
	Downward switch-off threshold (%) :	- 0 +	
	Cancel	Save	

The desired behaviour of the relay can be set with the switch-on and switch-off thresholds.

### Upward switch-on threshold

Value to which the virtual lamp power level is continuously compared and at which the output of the device is switched on each time the virtual lamp power level reaches or exceeds this value during upward dimming.



### Upward turn-off threshold

Value to which the virtual lamp power level is continuously compared and at which the output of the device is switched off each time the virtual lamp power level reaches or exceeds this value during upward dimming.

### Downward switch-on threshold

Value to which the virtual lamp power level is continuously compared and at which the output of the device is switched on each time the virtual lamp power level reaches or falls below this value during downward dimming.

#### Downward turn-off threshold

Value to which the virtual lamp power level is continuously compared and at which the output of the device is switched off each time the virtual lamp power level reaches or falls below this value during downward dimming.

An example of a possible configuration:



With the factory settings "Upward switch-on threshold = 1%" and "Downward turn-off threshold = 0%", the relay switches on at dimming value 1% and switches off at dimming value 0%.

### Diagnosis

Parameter for Relay				
Basic	11 Expert		14 Diagnosis	ð
	Reset parameter		Activate	
	Factory settings		Activate	
	Identify		Activate	
	Status		On	
		Close window		

### Reset parameter

All parameters of the relay are set to factory settings. The relay is supplied with the following parameter values:

Expert	Deactivate upward switch-on threshold	<inactive></inactive>
	Upward switch-on threshold	1
	Deactivate upward turn-off threshold	<active></active>
	Upward turn-off threshold	<inactive></inactive>
	Deactivate downward switch-on threshold	<active></active>
	Downward switch-on threshold	<inactive></inactive>
	Deactivate downward turn-off threshold	<inactive></inactive>
	Downward turn-off threshold	0

### Factory settings

The selected relay is reset to factory settings, the short address is deleted, and it will be removed from the group. The relay must be read in again by "Read DALI participants".



The assignment of the relay is deleted and removed from the system!

### Identify

By tapping the "Trigger" button, the relay starts to switch on/off cyclically (1.5 s on and 1.5 s off) and can thus be identified. At the same time, the labelling of the button changes to Stop. Identification is stopped automatically after 12 s.

### Status

The current switching status of the relay is indicated here with "On" or "Off". The display is updated every second.



### 7.6.3 Push button

### Basic

Parameter for Button configuration			
Basic		III Diagnosis	J
	Name		
	Push 1		
	Remove button:	ĉ	Ĵ
	Type :	NO contact 🔷 🗸	
	Function :	Switching/dimming ~	*
	Cancel		Save

### Remove push button

Tapping removes the push button from the group or scene and moves it to the right column to the unassigned DALI participants. This push button can afterwards be assigned to any group or scene again.

igcup The name of the push button is not deleted after removal.

### Туре

The type of the connected push button can be set here.

- NO contact: When the push button is pressed, the contact is closed (NO).
- **Opening contact**: When the push button is pressed, the contact is interrupted (NC).

### Function

The desired function can be assigned to the push button.

- Switching/dimming: A short button press switches the group on/off, and a long button press dims it if the group allows it.
- **Tunable White**: A short button press switches the group on/off, and a long button press changes the colour temperature.
- **RGB colour**: A short button press switches the group on/off, and a long button press changes the colour.



### Diagnosis

sic Diagnosis           Reset parameter         Activate           Factory settings         Activate
Reset parameter Activate Factory settings Activate
Factory settings Activate
(loco window

### Reset parameter

All parameters of the push button are set to factory settings. The push button is supplied with the following parameter values:

Expert	Туре	NO contact
	Function	Switching/dimming

### Factory settings

The selected push button is reset to factory settings, the short address is deleted, and it will be removed from the group or scene. The push button must be read in again by "Read DALI participants".

 $\bigcirc$  The assignment of the push button is deleted and removed from the system!

### 7.7 Start-up

After first switching on the system power supply, the presence detector is restarted, automatically identifies all connected DALI participants, assigns short addresses and manages them in a list. This stage is indicated by the LED flashing pattern "DALI system check" and, depending on the size of the system, can last up to 10 min.

If no DALI device is connected to the presence detector or a DALI line is interrupted, the presence detector indicates this with the LED flashing pattern "DALI system error". If the system is OK, the presence detector automatically enters configuration mode and waits for configuration. This is indicated by the LED flashing pattern "DALI emergency mode". As long as the configuration has not been carried out, the system is in the following operating state:

- Presence detector is in broadcast mode.
- Function is switching mode (only presence detection, no light measurement).
- All lights are controlled with 100% switch-on dimming value.
- The operating mode is as a fully automatic device.
- All connected push buttons are active. Switching on and off as well as dimming are possible.
- Time delay: 10 min.

There are two procedures for start-up using the app:

### Preparing the project in offline mode

The entire building and room structure with the desired groups and parameter settings can already be created at the office, see from Chapter <u>7.2 Create project</u>. During start-up, only the DALI participants need to be assigned per room.

### Preparing the project in online mode

During start-up, all steps per room can also be carried out at once. First, all DALI participants per room are read in. Then, the room structure is created with the desired groups and parameter settings, and finally the DALI participants are assigned per room.

In the app, the white "Select Master" button must first be tapped in a room.

<ul> <li>daliplug</li> <li>File Help</li> </ul>							-	٥	×
~			Office Building Lone	don Square					
				Тор					
	Select master								
Office 1.1			· )	Dali					
	Master Office 1.1 SN : H000000010					100% .all			
	<b>DALI108</b> SN : 0123456789					100% 			
Lighting group	DALI108 SN : 9876543210					100% .all			
Presence group	DALI108 SN : 0123498765					100%			
Switching group	<b>DALI108</b> SN : 9876501234					100%			
Group-oriented scene									
		Cancel			ок ┥				
				Select master					

Figure 6

All masters located within the reception range will be listed. When a master in the list is tapped, the LED on the master device starts flashing blue (see flashing pattern in Chapter <u>4.7</u> <u>Display/visualisation</u>). If the desired master device was found, confirm with "OK".

Too many BLE devices in the vicinity could cause problems. If possible, switch off unnecessary BLE devices.

If the groups and parameter settings of the master do not match those of the app, one can choose whether to accept all settings from the master, or from the app.



Select the desired type. The subsequent synchronisation may take a few minutes.



A new window opens on the right-hand side, see Fig. 7. With a brief tap on the "Read DALI participants" button, all DALI participants including presence sensors that are connected to the DALI line of the master will be read in and listed. Reading in may take a few minutes. In addition, a new button "Start DALI group assignment" appears.





### 7.7.1 Assigning DALI participants

With a short tap on the "Start DALI group assignment" button, the assignment process begins, see Fig. 7.

The type of DALI participants is identified during reading and marked with the corresponding icon.

Group assignment is automatically terminated after one hour.

### Assignment of EBs/lamps

The presence detector starts with the EB at the top of the list. This lights up yellow and a light starts flashing. At the same time, all positions to which an EB can be assigned are marked with a yellow border on the left-hand side. Next, tap on the desired position to which the EB is to be assigned. The assigned EB changes its colour to grey and the lamp is dimmed to 20%. At the same time, the next EB lights up yellow on the right-hand side. Repeat the assignment accordingly until all EBs are assigned.



(i)

It is possible that a DALI device contains several DALI participants. If one of these is not needed, it must still be assigned to a group so that normal operation is possible.

daliplug     File Help				- a ×
$\leftarrow$		Office Building London Square		
		Window	]	Stop DALI group assignment
1. upper floor  Office 1.1		Liphing group: Window		ECG (6)
		Liphing group: Interior (♥ ≢ 1 2 0 1		0 0 0
Lighting group	Door	Liphing group: Wall liphing	Right	Relay (1) Push-button (Please press a button) (8)
Presence group		Presence group Presence group 1		
Free scene		Group-priented scene: 1 🚔		0-{   0-{   0-{
		Free scene 1		া ল
		Matter Office 11		

Figure 8

(i)

By tapping an EB in the right-hand window, the order of assignment can be freely selected.

EBs can be used in a lighting group or switching group.

### Assignment of relays

If necessary, scroll down in the right-hand window until the relays appear. Tap one of the displayed relays. It lights up yellow and a relay starts to switch on/off cyclically. At the same time, all positions to which a relay can be assigned are marked with a yellow border on the left-hand side. Next, tap on the desired position to which the relay is to be assigned. The assigned relay changes its colour to grey and the relay stops switching on/off. Repeat the assignment accordingly until all relays are assigned.



By tapping a relay in the right-hand window, the order of assignment can be freely selected.

m 
angle Relays can be used in a lighting group, switching group, or presence group.

### Assignment of push buttons

If necessary, scroll down in the right-hand window until the push buttons appear. IBriefly press the desired push button. On the right-hand window, a push button lights up yellow. At the same time, all push button positions to which a push button can be assigned are marked with a yellow border on the left-hand side. Next, tap on the desired position to which the push button is to be assigned. The assigned push button changes its colour to grey. Repeat the assignment accordingly until all required push buttons are assigned.



- A single push button can be assigned to several lighting and switching groups at the same time.
- A single push button can only be assigned to one scene type, i.e. "free scene" or "grouporiented scene".
- If the push button has been assigned to one of the "free scene" or "group-oriented scene" scenes, it can no longer be assigned to a lighting or switching group. If the push button has been assigned to a lighting or switching group, this push button can no longer be used for "free scene" or "group-oriented scene".
- If a push button of the type opening contact (NC) is used, it can be identified by doubleclicking on it. After the type parameter of the push button has been set to opening contact, the push button responds normally to a short tap.

The assignment of the DALI participants is finished with a short tap on the "Stop DALI group assignment" button. The presence detector restarts. The right-hand window can be closed.



 $(\mathbf{i})$ 

### 7.8 User remote control

The user remote control theSenda B or theSenda S can be used to switch the lighting groups on/off, or dim them, and call up scenes.

For configuration, we recommend using the DALI-2 RS Plug app only and not theSenda P installation remote control.

### 7.8.1 theSenda B

The presence detector channels and the theSenda B channels are linked via an IR group address. 8 IR group addresses are available for linking.

Operation of a lighting group requires that the presence detector channel IR group address and that of theSenda B channel match.

The IR group addresses on the Senda B user remote control can flexibly be allocated to channels 1 to 3 and scenes 1 + 2.

The setting can easily be made via "theSenda Plug" app, "Configure theSenda B" menu. IR group addresses I to VIII are available for selection. It is also possible to allocate several IR group addresses to the channels and scenes. The user remote control theSenda B is delivered with the following factory settings:

- Channel 1 light: IR group address I
- Channel 2 light: IR group address II
- Channel 3 light: IR group address III
- Scene 1: IR group address I, II and III
- Scene 2: IR group address I, II and III





### 7.8.2 theSenda S

The presence detector channels and the theSenda S channels are linked via an IR group address. IR group addresses are available for linking.

Operation of a lighting group requires that the presence detector channel IR group address and that of theSenda S channel match.

IR group addresses I and II are allocated permanently to 4 buttons on theSenda S user remote control and cannot be changed. Further information can be found in the operating instructions of theSenda S.





### 8 Appendix

### 8.1 Short circuit mechanism

If a short circuit is detected (bus voltage below 8 V for at least 600 ms), the bus voltage supply switches off for 600 ms. Afterwards, the bus voltage supply is switched on again for approx. 5 ms to check again for a short circuit. If a short circuit (bus voltage above 8 V) is no longer detected, the bus voltage supply remains switched on. Otherwise, the bus voltage supply is switched off again for 600 ms and afterwards it will be checked for a short circuit for 5 ms. This will be repeated until either the short circuit is removed or if 15 s have elapsed since the short circuit began. Then, the bus supply is switched on for 600 ms regardless of the short circuit and the mechanism starts again.



See also IEC 62386-101 6.6.2 Short circuit behaviour

### 8.2 Operating systems

The "DALI-2 RS Plug" app is compatible for tablets with the following operating systems

- Android 5.1 or higher
- iOS 9.0 or higher

For laptops, Bluetooth must be integrated and the current version of Windows 10 must be available.



### 9 Accessories

Surface frame 110A WH Item no.: 9070912 Details > www.theben.de



Surface frame 110A GR Item no.: 9070913 Details > www.theben.de



Ceiling installation box 68A Item no.: 9070992 Details > www.theben.de



Cover 110 GR Item no.: 9070591 Details > www.theben.de



Cover clip Item no.: 9070921 Details > www.theben.de





theSenda B Item no.: 9070985 Details > www.theben.de



theSenda S Item no.: 9070911 Details > www.theben.de



### 10 Contact

### Theben AG

Hohenbergstr. 32 72401 Haigerloch GERMANY Phone +49 7474 692-0 Fax +49 7474 692-150

### Hotline

Phone +49 7474 692-369 hotline@theben.de Addresses, telephone numbers, etc. www.theben.de